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Hernando County Housing & Supportive Services (HSS)
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application for Public Services Projects
Program Year (PY) 2025

[ APPLICATION COVER SHEET ]

Proposal Preparer/Staff Contact information

Locality/Organization Name You Thrive Florida

Mailing Address 820 Kennedy Bivd

Organization Website https //youthrivefl.org

Phone # 352-796-1425 ext. 211

Fax # 352-796-7500

Federal Tax ID # 59-1235202

DUNS # / SAMS# 08-471-9640/813319

Authorized Official Name/Title |Steve Homan/Chief Operating Officer
Official E-mail Address shoman@youthrivefl.org

Contact Person Steve Homan

Contact Person E-mal shoman@youthrivefl.org

Activity Title (Keep to 50 characters)
|Home ownership assistance ]

Specify Service Area (in Hernando County)
|Serves all of Hernando County

Location where Public Services will be provided:
[N/A

Proximity to Transit-Rich Area: Will proposed activity be located within one mile of
transit service? Or will transportation be provided? Please identify location and
distance of nearest transit service or area where transportation will be provided:
|N/A

Funding Request — (Minimum $20,000 for all projects)
County Other Funds Total
Total CDBG Funds Requested $ 45,000 $ $

Activity Description (Brief — 250 character limit)
| See Attached

Hernando County CDBG PY 2025 Public Services Proposal



ELIGIBILITY

Please refer to the instructions for assistance in completing the proposal.

Agencies in a non-compliance status with any current funding agreement with Hernando
County, as determined by HHS, are not eligible to apply under this RFP.

CDBG funding may only be used to provide reimbursement for eligible public
services/programs (including salaries and benefits, supplies, materials and other program
delivery costs). Indirect administrative costs are not eligible.

Projects must provide a new service or a quantifiable increase in the current level of
service and demonstrate that new or increased funding does not merely replace other
state or local government funding for an existing service.

Provided whether the proposed service is either (check one):

[ A new service
* A project is considered new if the proposed project or service has never been
funded by Hernando County under Public Services in response to this RFP

[x] A quantifiable increase in the level of a service

.  NATIONAL OBJECTIVE CRITERIA AND ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

A. National Objectives:

1. To be eligible for CDBG funding from the County, the activity must meet the
National Objective: “Benefits low — to moderate-income (LMI) persons.” To be
considered as benefiting low- and moderate-income persons, an activity must fall
into either Area Benefit, Limited Clientele/lLow Mod Income or Limited
Clientele/Presumed Benefit. Please check the applicable box for your activity:

[] Area Benefit — The activity serves only a limited area, which is confirmed
by 2020 Census data or survey to determine Low/Moderate Income. Refer to:

4f88b501b7e7f326bedd. By c_hoosing this category, you must be able to prove
that your activity benefits primarily LMl households. At least 51% of the
residents within the targeted activity area are LMI income households (80%
AMI).

Census Block Group
Tract
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[ Limited Clientele/Low Mod Income

¢ How will you verify clientele income?
@ Tax Returns
(W Pay Stubs
(M Bank Records
[] Other, please explain

[] Limited Clientele/Presumed Benefit — Serving 100% of clientele that
meet one of the following presumed benefit categories. Only check if

applicable.

Abused Children

lliiterate Adults

Elderly Persons (62+)
Persons living with HIV/AIDS
Battered Spouses

Migrant Farm Workers
Severely Disabled Adults
Homeless Persons

/N

[

2. Identify the number of low- and moderate-income households you propose
to serve:
[] 0-30% AMI households
] 31-50% AMI households
] 51-80% AMI 2 households

3. Number & Percentage of LMI Served. Do Not Include City of Brooksville

Residents.
Please select the applicable beneficiary accomplishment :
Total Total /M

Served LMI
Individuals to be Served by
Activity 2-7
Households to be Served by 1
Activity

B. Eligible CDBG Activities — Select One

[C] Homeless Services [C] Employment Training
[1 Child Care Services Services
[] Health Care Services [] Senior Services

[l Handicapped Services

Hernando County CDBG PY 2025 Public Services Proposal



Iv.

V.

VL.

[] Legal Services [] Domestic Violence Services
] Youth Services [] Substance Abuse Services
[] Housing Counseling Services [W] OtherHomeownership Assistance

Consistency with Hernando County Consolidated Plan
1. What priority in the 2024-2026 Consolidated Plan does the proposed project seek to

address? (Please refer to Instructions for list of priorities)
Housing

Performance Measures: (Check all that apply to your proposal)
[JSuitable Living Environment
[W|Decent Housing
[[ICreating Economic Opportunity

Outcome Categories: (Check all that apply to your proposal)
[JAvailability/Accessibility
[E|Affordability
[CJSustainability

ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Services- Provide a detailed breakdown of the proposed Scope of Services
for CDBG funding, i.e. objective of activities, the service to be provided, and the end
product expected. (Limit response to 1000 characters).

| See Attached ‘

B. Activity Timeline — Please fill out projected timeline. No funds can be spent until the
environmental review is complete (as applicable) and funding agreement is executed.
Funds will not be available until after October 1, 2025.

Date Milestone

1/1/2026-2/1/2026 Application window open to those who meet qualifications
2/2/2026-2/28/2026 Application review and selection period

3/1/2026-6/1/2026 | House being built-during this time approved applicant will move through financial qualification
6/2/2026-6/30/2026 funds will be utilized for down-payment and final closing on the home
ACTIVITY BUDGET

A. Sources — Attach supporting documentation verifying commitment or award letters
from sources external to your agency (e.g., financial institutions, government, quasi-
government, or grant agencies) for this proposal. Leveraging is calculated using the
following formula: Committed External Funds / Total Project Cost = Leveraged % from
agency.

Hernando County CDBG PY 2025 Public Services Proposal



Other Funding Source(s)
Attach letters of commitment
N/A

Amount of Committed Pending

Funds

Total

PP H |

List All Funds Received from

Hernando County since 2022

Amount of
Funds

Committed Pending

See Attached

Total

AP |a P

8RR A |H
B |R|H|H

B. Uses — Attach supporting documentation

Budgeted Activities

CDBG
Funds

Other Total
Funds Activity

Requested

Cost

$ Home buyer down payment assistance $ 45,000 $nia $ 45,000
$ $ $ $
$ $ $ $
$ $ $ $
$ $ $ $

C. Who prepared the cost estimate? (Attach supporting documentation)

[] Proposer: Name of Staff Person(s) _

[ ] Other Contractor or Consultant: Name of Firm_

C. When was the budget cost estimate prepared?

D. On what basis did you determine that the estimated costs were reasonable and

accurate?

E. How will you ensure the activity will be financially sustainable after funding? (Limit

response to 1000 characters)

|See Attached

]
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VII.

FINANCIAL DOCUMENTATION

The documentation will help determine whether a Proposer is solvent and has the cash flow
available to complete a CDBG project within the timeline of the executed agreement. All
financial documents should be provided in a separate attachment from the application.

Hernando County will be reviewing the financial stability of the organization. The following
questions will be considered by the Department to determine the financial capacity of the
Proposer.

A. Financial Capacity:

Does proposer show financial oversight and internal controls?

Can proposer achieve income stability by demonstrating capacity to
generate income?

Does proposer show responsible stewardship of resources it has
received?

Is there adequate management that has practices in place for financial
reporting?

Is the proposer viable based on its mission and its ability to carry out its
mission in a stable and effective way?

<]

<1 X X

B. Financial Documents Required:

1. If the proposer has been awarded more than $750,000 in Federal funding in the last
year, then the proposer must provide the most current (no older than two years)
signed copy of proposer’s Single Audit.

2. If the proposer has been awarded less than $750,000 in federal funding in the last
year, then they must submit a certified financial statement in lieu of an audit. The
certified financial statement must include the following information:

a. Current financial position to determine:

e Stability (cash flow versus reliable income)

e Sustainability (budget showing a surplus or deficit)

¢ Reasonable accounting format (showing assets and liabilities and
composition of expenses)

b. Results of operations or changes in net assets.

c. If the proposer has received any federal award (directly or indirectly), then they
must provide the schedule of expenditures of the federal award(s) for the period
covered by the financial statement, include the total federal award expended for
each individual federal program, federal Organization name, pass-through entity
(if applicable), and CFDA number (or other identifying number if CFDA number
is not available);

d. If applicable, identify in the financial statement notes the total amount provided
for a loan or loan guarantee program(s); include the schedule of balance
outstanding at the end of the audit period. Also include notes that describe the
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accounting policies used in preparing the schedule and if the auditee elected to
use the 10% de minimis cost rate on indirect costs;
¢ Restrictions (temporary and permanent) that impact income statements.
e Copy of financial policies and procedures, and
e Copy of the most recent IRS Form 990.
3. Attachment of the organization’s current financial policy and procedures.

C. Financial Analysis Parameters:

Number of Days from Financial Statement Issued
Current Ratio — should be equal or greater than 1 to 1
Days Cash on Hand — Industry Average is 90 days
Cash Flow Ratio — Ratio should be positive

Debt Ratio

Reliance Ratio

Reliance on Government Ratio

Personnel Cost Ratio

Benefit Cost Ratio

Gen, Admin and Fundraising Cost Ratio
Profitability Ratio

N

HE NN EEEN

VIIL. GRANT ADMINISTRATION
A. Identify names and titles of members of the Board:

see attached Board Roster

B. Identify staff members’ names and position who will administer the activity and be
responsible for all compliance requirements:

Steve Homan Chief Operating Officer
Kris Bates Chief Financial Officer

C. Briefly describe the extent and years of experience of the staff members who will
administer this activity with these CDBG funds. (Limit to 100 characters)

Hernando County CDBG PY 2025 Public Services Proposal



Steve Homan, COO since 2021, Kris Bates, CFO since 2003

D. Briefly describe the extent and years of experience of the staff members in
administering grants, regulatory compliance, and fiduciary responsibilities. (Limit to
100 characters)

see attached description

E. Explain proposer's administrative capacity to carry out activity successfully. (Limit to
100 characters)

See attached description

F. Inthe past year, did your organization have any past compliance findings or concerns

from HSS monitoring (in writing) or other agency?
No

G. Have all compliance issues from the past year been resolved, if applicable?
N/A

H. Partnering organizations, collaborating on this program, if applicable:
N/A

. Marketing plan to acquire clients, if applicable. (1000-character limit)

Our program attends events and has a robust plan for distributing brochures, as well as
social media marketing and announcements, in addition to promotion on our website.

J. [H] Attach Letter from Board Chair authorizing signature of “Authorized Official.”

K. Other Documentation — Please attach documents.

Hernando County CDBG PY 2025 Public Services Proposal



Federal Suspension and Debarment Certification:

Federal Executive Order 12549 prohibits federal, state, and local public agencies receiving
grant funding from contracting with individuals, organizations, or companies who have been
excluded from participating in federal contracts or grants. The purpose of this certification is for
the contractor/vendor to advise Hernando County, in writing, of any current Federal Suspension
and Debarment.

Debarment Certification. By signing and submitting a response to this competitive solicitation,
| certify that this firm and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred by any Federal
Department or Agency from participating in Federally Funded Contracts.

Authorized Signature of Applicant. To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information
in this application is true and correct. The document has been duly authorized by the governing
body of the applicant who will comply with all contractual obligations if the proposal is awarded
funding.

Signature of Authorized

Representative: g “( . JK-'!

Typed Name and -
Title: SteVE Homan, Chte{\ Dchﬂ«y Of*cen  Date Signed: [0 //0 /Zo 2S5

CERTIFICATION

I certify that the information contained in this proposal is true and correct and that it
contains no misrepresentations, falsifications, intentional omissions, or concealment
of material facts. | further certify that no contracts have been awarded, funds
committed, or construction begun on the proposed project, and that no action will be
taken prior to issuance of official authorization to proceed by the Hernando County
Housing & Supportive Services Department. 1 further certify that | am authorized to
submit this Proposal and have followed all policies and procedures of my
Organization regarding grant claim submissions.

Ao M —

Slgnature of Authorized Official
Steve Homan

Name of Authorized Official
Chief Operating Officer

Title

10/10/2025

Date
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N Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives
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Activity Description:

Part of our program is designed to build affordable housing for low/moderate income first
time home buyers. This grant will allow us to pay up to 50% of the down payment
required by the mortgagee for the purchase on behalf of the purchaser.

\ (352)796-1425 @ 820 Kennedy Bivd. Brooksville, FL 34601 www.youthrivefl.org
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N Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives

Scope of Services:

Our objective is to provide financial assistance for first time low/moderate income home
buyers to reduce overall cost of home ownership. The service to be provided is down
payment assistance to reduce the overall cost of the home. By reducing the overall cost,

the intent is to make the home more affordable.

A, (352)796-1425 @ 820 Kennedy Bivd. Brooksville, FL 34601 &) www.youthriveflorg
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Section VI
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Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives

List of all funds received from Hernando County since 2022:

Amount of

Type funds Committed | Pending
SHIP (2023) $50,000 yes
SHIP (2023) $50,000 yes
SHIP (2023) $50,000 yes
SHIP (2024) $50,000 yes
SHIP (2024) $50,000 yes
SHIP (2024) $50,000 yes
SHIP (2025) $50,000 yes

Total $350,000

. (352) 796-1425

o 820 Kennedy Blvd. Brooksville, FL 34601 @ www.youthrivefl.org
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M Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives

How will you ensure the activity will be financially sustainable after funding?

Our program will continue to leverage resources such as SHIP funding, other grants and
donations, to offset the cost of building future affordable homes, thus passing on savings to home

buyers.

\, (352)796-1425 @ 820 Kennedy Blvd. Brooksville, FL 34601 &) www.youthrivefl.org
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.
d/b/a You Thrive Florida

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2024 and 2023
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CAR R® Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC.
c R I RIGGS & 1117 Bolt Weevil Circle
INGRAM Enterprise, AL 36330

Mailing Address:
CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C. PO Box 311070

Enterprise, AL 36331

334.347.0088
334.347.7650 (fax)
CRladv.com

Board of Directors
Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Brooksville, Florida

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.
d/b/a You Thrive Florida (a nonprofit organization) (the Agency), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of activities,

functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Agency as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Agency and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an



Auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance,
as required by Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedules of functional
expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Mid Florida Area Agency
on Aging, d/b/a Elder Options (pg. 42-44), and Department of Elder Affairs Senior Connections
Center, Inc. (pg. 45-46), and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing

-2-



standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance and accompanying schedules on pages
42 through 46, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February
14, 2025 on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

@am,%%%», ,f' Ungan, L.L-C.

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

Enterprise, Alabama
February 14, 2025



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Statements of Financial Position

September 30, 2024 2023

Assets
Cash $ 1,829,973 S 1,498,669
Grants receivable 5,189,664 5,108,018
Other receivables 195,652 346,972
Mortgages receivable 628,404 679,530
Prepaid expenses 82,392 22,908
Lots and homes held for resale 316,792 386,828
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 1,444,152 1,502,808
Property and equipment, net 800,835 881,365

Total assets $ 10,487,864 S 10,427,098

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable S 1,576,679 S 1,755,381
Accrued expenses 897,784 876,211
Line of credit 350,000 -
Deferred revenue 43,643 65,027
Operating lease liabilities 1,492,506 1,517,598
Total liabilities 4,360,612 4,214,217
Net assets
Without donor restrictions 6,127,252 6,212,881
Total liabilities and net assets $ 10,487,864 S 10,427,098

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
_4-



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Statements of Activities

Without Donor With Donor

For the year ended September 30, 2024 Restrictions Restrictions Total
Revenue and Other Support

Grant income ) 37,995,424 S - §  37,995424

Local monies 1,211,794 - 1,211,794

Program income 47,461 - 47,461

Fees 2,491,285 - 2,491,285

In-kind 4,405,853 - 4,405,853
Total revenue and other support 46,151,817 - 46,151,817
Expenses
Program services

Early Childhood 22,472,603 - 22,472,603

Elderly 11,055,893 - 11,055,893

Emergency Assistance 2,919,210 - 2,919,210

Energy Conservation 3,784,415 - 3,784,415

Transportation 952,504 - 952,504

Community Services 2,808,738 - 2,808,738
Total program services 43,993,363 - 43,993,363
Support services

General and administration 2,244,083 - 2,244,083
Total expenses 46,237,446 - 46,237,446
Change in net assets (85,629) - (85,629)
Net assets at beginning of year 6,212,881 - 6,212,881
Net assets at end of year S 6,127,252 $ - S 6,127,252

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5.



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Statements of Activities (Continued)

Without Donor With Donor

For the year ended September 30, 2023 Restrictions Restrictions Total
Revenue and Other Support

Grant income S 35,119,522 §$ $ 35,119,522

Local monies 802,918 802,918

Program income 41,261 41,261

Fees 2,316,915 2,316,915

In-kind 3,808,279 3,808,279
Total revenue and other support 42,088,895 42,088,895
Expenses
Program services

Early Childhood 20,398,426 20,398,426

Elderly 9,718,485 9,718,485

Emergency Assistance 1,042,781 1,042,781

Energy Conservation 5,422,784 5,422,784

Transportation 1,012,553 1,012,553

Community Services 2,143,220 2,143,220
Total program services 39,738,249 39,738,249
Support services

General and administration 2,135,034 2,135,034
Total expenses 41,873,283 41,873,283
Change in net assets 215,612 215,612
Net assets at beginning of year 5,997,269 5,997,269
Net assets at end of year S 6,212,881 S ) 6,212,881

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-6-



For the year ended September 30, 2024

Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Statements of Functional Expenses

Supporting
Program Services Services
Early Energy Emergency Community General and 2024
Childhood Elderly Conservation Assistance Transportation Services Administration Total
Salary and fringe benefits $ 12,776,592 $ 1,460,291 $ 221,589 $ 429,731 $ 487,607 $ 1,018402 $ 1,576,715 $ 17,970,927
Office supplies 65,289 28,773 2,206 6,140 1,239 18,220 19,918 141,785
Program supplies 661,556 13,689 - - 62,338 2,172 5,937 745,692
Program services 171,756 6,380,031 318,434 - - 373,373 - 7,243,594
Utilities and telephone 488,301 75,332 4,550 19,480 22,349 49,144 35,464 694,620
Insurance 272,391 27,953 7,864 3,925 189,031 25,078 22,392 548,634
Interest 44,182 3,897 604 4,270 - 2,129 7,783 62,865
Postage and shipping - 4,443 748 1,244 249 751 1,603 9,038
Space costs 3,326,656 494,913 7,329 37,469 - 69,383 91,230 4,026,980
Travel 107,282 44,336 18,511 681 17 23,717 13,919 208,463
Repairs and maintenance 804,640 31,816 5,870 19,677 96,637 41,956 38,123 1,038,719
Weatherization material - - 2,290,211 - = - - 2,290,211
Tools and equipment 207,171 18,361 4,744 - 337 350,198 17,874 598,685
Professional services 302,979 11,205 200 5,749 12,538 5,735 232,157 570,563
Nutrition services 786,675 2,189,313 - - - - - 2,975,988
Emergency assistance - - - 3,179,198 - 25,502 - 3,204,700
Support services - = - - - 584,274 - 584,274
Transportation - - - - - 4,386 - 4,386
Personnel 420,831 8,165 4,341 1,281 2,160 10,151 28,693 475,622
Payroll fees 67,399 9,551 726 3,378 2,007 4,185 4,604 91,850
Other 1,919,215 249,942 31,283 72,192 68,272 180,590 130,166 2,651,660
Total expenses before depreciation and
amortization 22,422,915 11,052,011 2,919,210 3,784,415 944,781 2,789,346 2,226,578 46,139,256
Depreciation and amortization 49,688 3,882 - - 7,723 19,392 17,505 98,190
Total $ 22,472,603 $ 11,055,893 $ 2,919,210 $ 3,784,415 $ 952,504 $ 2,808,738 S 2,244,083 § 46,237,446

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended September 30, 2023

Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Statements of Functional Expenses (Continued)

Supporting
Program Services Services
Early Energy Emergency Community General and 2023
Childhood Elderly Conservation Assistance Transportation Services Administration Total
Salary and fringe benefits $ 10,994,331 $ 1,381,443 S 131,985 S 603,467 $ 484,912 $ 902,799 $ 1,651,841 $ 16,150,778
Office supplies 367,311 27,603 1,168 7,002 3,398 19,984 21,374 447,840
Program supplies 861,253 9,705 - - 66,301 5,637 - 942,896
Program services 151,283 4,982,394 141,540 - - 138,523 - 5,413,740
Utilities and telephone 444,583 72,824 2,076 21,900 19,587 50,131 34,988 646,089
Insurance 164,284 17,271 3,498 4,622 121,011 27,120 10,632 348,438
Interest 43,506 5,108 262 5,800 - 2,809 6,267 63,752
Postage and shipping - 2,215 651 1,852 444 634 560 6,356
Space costs 2,632,912 472,656 94 5,255 - 69,176 31,493 3,211,586
Travel 93,460 43,067 132 291 - 21,636 9,895 168,481
Repairs and maintenance 898,173 24,683 1,767 22,649 81,558 40,875 34,178 1,103,883
Weatherization material - - 736,636 - - - - 736,636
Tools and equipment 137,778 11,759 1,242 1,457 150,000 10,361 14,189 326,786
Professional services 237,719 3,346 185 9,820 12,363 9,143 133,623 406,199
Nutrition services 645,851 2,412,338 - - - 97 - 3,058,286
Emergency assistance - - - 4,610,642 - 29,750 - 4,640,392
Support services - - - N - 590,672 - 590,672
Transportation - - - - - 8,763 - 8,763
Personnel 763,813 2,693 2,997 327 861 16,610 24,378 811,679
Payroll fees 57,461 8,853 425 3,574 1,984 4,898 5,276 82,471
Other 1,549,154 202,501 16,314 84,083 56,889 154,893 84,125 2,147,959
Total expenses before depreciation and
amortization 20,042,872 9,680,459 1,040,972 5,382,741 999,308 2,104,511 2,062,819 41,313,682
Depreciation and amortization 355,554 38,026 1,809 40,043 13,245 38,709 72,215 559,601
Total $ 20,398,426 S 9,718,485 S 1,042,781 $ 5,422,784 S 1,012,553 $ 2,143,220 $ 2,135,034 $ 41,873,283

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended September 30, 2024 2023
Operating Activities
Change in net assets S (85,629) S 215,612
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 98,189 73,441
Amortization of right-of-use assets - 478,941
Loss on disposal of assets 55,405 5,154
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Grants receivable (81,646) (1,912,649)
Mortgages receivable 51,126 54,050
Other receivables 151,320 (43,654)
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 58,656 (1,981,749)
Lots and home held for resale 70,036 (254,528)
Prepaid expenses (59,484) 2,483
Accounts payable (178,702) 682,403
Accrued expenses 21,573 105,033
Line of credit 350,000 -
Deferred revenue (21,384) (388,806)
Operating lease liabilities (25,092) 1,517,598
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 404,368 (1,446,671)
Investing Activities
Purchases of equipment (73,064) (129,189)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (73,064) (129,189)
Net change in cash 331,304 (1,575,860)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,498,669 3,074,529
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 1,829,973 § 1,498,669
Schedule of Noncash Transactions
Lease liabilities arising from obtaining right-of-use assets
Operating leases $ 453,422 S 118,841
Schedule of Certain Cash Flow information
Cash paid for interest $ 62,865 S 63,752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: DESCRIPTION OF THE ORGANIZATION
Organization

Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida (the "Agency") is a not-for-profit
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Florida for the purpose of implementing
various programs and projects for the poor and underprivileged residents of Hernando, Sumter,
Pasco, Lake, Polk, Volusia, and Citrus Counties of Florida. On May 15, 2024 the Agency rebranded its
business name and is now doing business as You Thrive Florida. This is a name change only and the
legal name remains Mid Florid Community Services, Inc. The Agency administers grants under six
major categories:

The Community Services Division, which are classified by function as community services,
administers many federally and locally funded projects. Federal programs include the
Community Services Block Grant. This grant provides funds to assist low-income people with self-
sufficiency, improved living conditions, strengthened family relations, and other supportive
services. The Children’s Advocacy Center of Hernando County is dedicated to reducing trauma to
victims of child abuse and their families through intervention, prevention and education. The
House to Home program provides for the purchase of low-income homes to individuals of
Hernando County Florida.

The Energy Conservation Services Division provides for weatherization of homes of low-income
persons.

The Emergency Services Division provides for low-income home energy electricity and water bill
assistance to low-income individuals.

The Transportation Division provides for public transportation services for the transportation of
the disadvantage citizens and veterans of Hernando County, Florida.

The Early Childhood Services Division administers Head Start and Early Head Start programs in
Hernando, Sumter and Volusia Counties. Approximately 977 children are enrolled in Head Start
and 232 children in the Early Head Start program, which helps disadvantaged preschoolers
prepare for entrance into kindergarten.

The Senior Services Division, which are classified by function as elderly, administers grants to
assist older individuals by providing nutritious meals, homemaking services, home care, and
energy assistance.

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP). The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) provides authoritative guidance regarding
U.S. GAAP through the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) and related Accounting Standards
Updates (ASUs).
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of U.S. GAAP financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and changes therein, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Agency considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity of three
months or less from date of purchase to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.
Cash restricted by grantors or by contractual obligations to specific purposes are recorded as
restricted cash and excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable represents pending reimbursements of program expenses incurred as of
September 30, 2024 and 2023, both billed and unbilled, and expected to be received from the
funding sources in the subsequent year. Management considers receivables at September 30, 2024
and 2023 to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for credit losses related to grants
receivable was made in the accompanying financial statements.

Mortgage Receivable

Mortgage receivable consists of non-interest bearing residential first mortgages secured by land
and construction costs and payable in monthly installments over the life of the mortgage, generally
ranging from 24 to 30 years. Non-interest-bearing mortgages have been discounted upon
prevailing federal market rates at the receipt of the loan. This discount will be recognized as
interest income over the term of the mortgage. Mortgages are maintained by an outside company
and principal, taxes and insurance collected each month is deposited in the Agency’s accounts less
an administration fee. Management considers mortgages receivable at September 30, 2024 and
2023 to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for credit losses related to mortgages
receivable was made in the accompanying financial statements.

Other Receivables

Other receivables represents monies owed from other funds, local monies, copays and
miscellaneous receivables owed as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and expected to be received in
the subsequent period. Management considers other receivables at September 30, 2024 and 2023
to be fully collectible. Accordingly, no allowance for credit losses related to other receivables was
made in the accompanying financial statements.
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Mid Florida Community Services, inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Allowance for Credit Losses

Management evaluates its receivables on an ongoing basis by analyzing customer relationships and
previous payment histories. The allowance for credit losses is management’s best estimate of the
amount of expected credit losses in the existing accounts based on current market conditions.
Historically, losses on uncollectible accounts have been within management’s expectations. The
allowance for credit losses is reviewed on a periodic basis to ensure there is sufficient reserve to
cover any potential credit losses. When receivables are considered uncollectible, they are charged
against the allowance for credit losses. Collections on accounts previously written off are included
in the change in net assets as received. As of September 30, 2024 and 2023, no allowance for credit
losses was made in the accompanying financial statements.

Lots and Homes Held for Resale

As of September 30, 2024 the Agency has in its House to Home program lots and homes for sale to
low-income homeowners consisting of the following:

Four Lots S 19,658
Two homes 297,134
Total lots and homes he le S 316,792

As of September 30, 2023 the Agency has in its House to Home program lots and homes for sale to
low income homeowners and a land deposit on a new building for the Children’s Advocacy Center
consisting of the following:

Five Lots S 16,500

Three homes 360,328

Total lots and homes held for resale 376,828

Land deposit Children’s Advocacy Center 10,000

Total n nstruction costs 2
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquired with cost-reimbursement grant funds are expensed in the period
purchased, since title to such assets remains with the grantor of funds. No depreciation is recorded
for these assets.

Property and equipment purchased with funds from performance-based grants or local funds are
capitalized at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method,
because title to such assets remains with the Agency. Physical assets acquired with unit costs in
excess of $5,000 are capitalized as property and equipment on the Agency’s financial statements.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Agency leases office space, classroom space and equipment. The Agency determines if an
arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use
(ROU) assets and operating lease liabilities on the statements of financial position. Finance leases
are included in property and equipment, and other long-term liabilities on the statements of
financial position.

ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities
represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease ROU assets
and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments
over the lease term. As most of the leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Agency uses a risk-
free rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the present
value of lease payments. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and
excludes lease incentives. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease if it
is reasonably certain that the Organization will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease
payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Our lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants.

Net Assets

The Agency reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two
classes of net assets that are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions on use that are
placed by its donors: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations and not subject
to donor restrictions. The only limits on the use of net assets without donor restrictions are the
broad limits resulting from the nature of the Agency, the environment in which it operates, the
purposes specified in its corporate documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any
limits resulting from contractual agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the
course of its operations.

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that are restricted by a donor for use for a
particular purpose or in a particular future period. Other restrictions may be perpetual in nature;
such as those that are restricted by a donor that the resources be maintained in perpetuity. As of
September 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no net assets with donor restrictions.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner specified by the
donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial
statements by reclassifying the net assets from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions.

Revenue Recognition
Program service fees and payments under cost-reimbursable contracts are accounted for under ASC
Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606), recognizing revenue when

performance obligations under the terms of the contracts with customers are satisfied. Prior to the
adoption of ASC 606, the Agency recognized revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement
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Mid Florida Community Services, inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue Recognition (continued)

existed, delivery of products had occurred, the sales price was fixed or determinable and
collectability was reasonably assured.

Contributions are recognized when cash, other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or
notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until
the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met or the donor has explicitly
released the restriction. Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the
same year in which the contributions are received are classified as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Grants and Contracts

The Agency also receives funding from federal, state and local grants and contracts, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or occurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Revenues are recognized when the Agency performs the contracted services or incurs
expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Grant activities and outlays
are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of such audit,
adjustments could be required.

The funding for the Agency’s operations is significantly dependent on the receipt of federal and
state grants. For the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, approximately 77% and 82%,
respectively, of the Agency’s total revenue and support was derived from the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (inclusive of amounts received through pass-through entities). It is
always considered reasonably possible that a customer, grantor, or contributor will be lost in the
near term.

Donated Assets

Donated investments and other noncash donations are recorded as contributions at their fair values
at the date of donation.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial
assets or (b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency. Volunteers also provided fund-raising services throughout
the year that are not recognized as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition
criteria were not met.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statements of activities and in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited in
accordance with the Agency’s cost allocation plan. General and administrative expenses include
those expenses that provide for the overall support and direction of the Agency.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Advertising

The Agency uses advertising to promote its programs among the audiences it serves. The
production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred. During the years ended September 30,
2024 and 2023, advertising costs were $21,021 and $718, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Agency has been granted an exemption from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code
Section 501 (c)(3) as a non-profit corporation. As required by Internal Revenue Service regulations,
the Agency annually files Form 990 “Return of Agency Exempt from Income Tax” with the Internal
Revenue Service. The Agency’s policy is to record interest and penalties related to taxes in interest
expense on the financial statement. The Agency did not have any interest or penalties related to
taxes in fiscal years 2024 and 2023.

The Agency utilizes the accounting requirements associated with uncertainty in incomes taxes using
the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that
guidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the financial statements when it is more-
likely-than-not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. It also
provides guidance for derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. As of September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Agency has no
uncertain tax provisions that qualify for recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued February 14, 2025 and determined there were no events that occurred that
require disclosure. No subsequent events occurring after this date have been evaluated for
inclusion in these financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which is often referred to as the CECL
model, or current expected credit losses. Among other things, the amendments in this ASU require
the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based
on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Financial
institutions and other organizations will now use forward-looking information to better inform their
credit loss estimates. Many of the loss estimation techniques utilized previously are still permitted,
although the inputs to those techniques changed to reflect the full amount of expected credit
losses. In addition, the ASU amends the accounting for credit losses on available-for-sale debt
securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterioration.

The Agency adopted ASU 2016-13 on October 1, 2023. The impact of the adoption was not
considered material to the financial statements and primarily resulted in enhanced disclosures only.



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL ASSET AVAILABILITY

The Agency maintains its financial assets primarily in cash and cash equivalents to provide liquidity
to ensure funds are available as the Agency’s expenditures come due. The following reflects the
Agency’s financial assets as of the statement of financial position date, reduced by amounts not
available for general use within one year of the statement of financial position date because of
contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

September 30, 2024 2023
Total assets at year end $ 10,487,864 S 10,427,098
Less non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 82,392 22,908
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 1,444,152 1,502,808
Mortgages receivable 628,404 679,530
Property and equipment, net 800,835 881,365

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year S 7,532,081 S 7,340,487

The Agency is principally supported by its grants and fees charged for the services it provides. The goal
of the Agency is to maintain available financial assets to meet its next 90 days of operating expenses of
approximately $10,400,000. In the event of unanticipated liquidity needs, the Agency has a line of credit
with available borrowings of $500,000. The line of credit matures annually on July 26 and automatically
renews for another year, at the discretion of the lender. Outstanding principal and interest is due at the
maturity date. The line of credit carries an interest rate of the Truist Bank Prime Rate per annum. The
line of credit is collateralized by the accounts, inventory, furniture and fixtures and other property of the
Agency.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Iinc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4: GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable consisted of the following:

September 30, 2024 2023
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Head Start $ 389,806 S 561,564

Early Head Start 165,017 225,577

Head Start Disaster Recovery 66,986 -
Area Agency on Aging d/b/a Elder Options:

Title 1IB 445,240 255,327

Title llIC1 116,686 182,479

Title 111C2 132,978 245,477

Title llIE 105,452 66,703

Emergency Home Energy Assistance for the Elderly - 7,985

Community Care for the Elderly 322,844 629,550

Alzheimer’s Disease Initiative 242,782 209,410

Home Care for the Elderly 10,634 15,611

Local Service Provider 5,809 7,833
Senior Connection Center, Inc.:

Title 1B 254,355 282,434

Title HIC1 156,932 165,439

Title IC2 153,465 310,092

Title IHIE - 78,360
Florida Department of Opportunity:

CSBG 206,411 159,611

Weatherization 745,078 200,085

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program 1,114,890 548,425

Low Income Home Water Assistance Program - 134,324
State of Florida Department of Health:

Child Care Food 124,589 68,064
Florida Department of Transportation:

Transportation for the Non-Sponsored Transportation

Disadvantaged 266,365 526,590

State of Florida Office of the State Court Administrator:

Florida Network of Child Advocacy Centers 136,876 180,327
Agency for Workforce Intervention:

Volunteer Prekindergarten Education 26,469 46,751
Grants receivable $ 5,189,664 5,108,018

'
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements
Note 5: OTHER RECEIVABLES
Other receivables consisted of the following:

September 30, 2024 2023

Local funds S 195,652 S 346,972

Note 6: MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

Mortgages receivable consisted of the following:

September 30, 2024 2023

Non-interest bearing loans at par value $ 1,152,668 S 1,259,561
Less unamortized discount based on imputed interest (524,264) (580,031)
Total $ 628,404 S 679,530

Note 7: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The components of property and equipment at September 30, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Estimated Useful

Lives
(in years) 2024 2023
Automobiles, vans, and buses 5 S 106,982 S 123,334
Equipment 5-10 370,348 359,453
Building renovation 39 894,029 901,001
Software and other intangibles 3 149,163 167,483
1,520,522 1,551,271
Less: accumulated depreciation (719,687) (669,906)
Property and eguipment, net S 800,835 S 881,365

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, depreciation expense was $98,190 and
$73,441, respectively. The Agency expenses capital assets purchased with cost reimbursement
grant funds. For 2024 and 2023, the Agency expensed $73,064 and $129,189, respectively, of
capital assets purchased with grant funds. As of September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Agency held
$2,867,231 and $2,957,815, respectively, of property and equipment that had not been recorded as
capital assets because the assets were purchased with grant funds and title remained with the
grantor. Approval for disposal and use of any related proceeds remains with the grantor agency that
provided the funds used in the acquisition of the noncapitalized assets.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements
Note 8: LEASES
The Agency has operating leases for office space and vehicles. The leases have remaining lease
terms of 2 to 13 years, some of which may include options to extend the leases for up to 5 years,
and some of which may include options to terminate the leases within 2 years.
Operating lease costs were $46,861 for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Weighted average remaining lease term and discount rates consist of the following:

For the years ended September 30, 2024

Weighted average remaining lease term
Operating leases 5.31 years

Weighted average discount rate
Operating leases 4.12%

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases as of September 30, 2024, are as
follows:

Operating
For the years ending September 30, Leases
2025 S 563,082
2026 317,324
2027 254,110
2028 223,659
2029 96,841
2030-2034 156,612
2035-2039 39,924
Total future minimum lease payments 1,651,552
Less imputed interest (159,046)
Present value of lease liabilities S 1,492,506
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9: ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

September 30, 2024 2023

Payroll S 365,786 S 260,468
Retirement 32,773 5,700
Vacation leave 499,225 610,043
Total S 897,784 S 876,211

Accrued vacation leave is 100% vested for all employees up to a maximum of 240 hours per person.

Note 10: REVENUE

The Agency’s customers are primarily the parents of children enrolled in childcare programs and
agencies and individuals receiving transportation services. Customers can obtain subsidized
assistance through federal, state, county or municipal governments or agencies, where all or a
portion of the childcare fees or transportation fees are paid by these third-party entities on behalf
of the customers. Program service fees are typically collected at the end of the week or month of
service or during each trip. All program service fee revenue is recognized at the point in time that
related childcare services or transportation services are performed.

Disaggregated Revenue
A summary of disaggregated revenue follows:

For the year ended September 30, 2024 2023

Contracts with customers
Recognized at a point in time
Program service fees $ 2,491,285 S 2,316,915

Other revenue and support

Grant income 37,995,424 35,119,522
Local monies 1,211,794 802,918
Program income 47,461 41,261
Inkind 4,405,853 3,808,279
Total revenue $ 46,151,817 $ 42,088,895
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Mid Florida Community Services, inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11: SICK LEAVE

The policy for sick leave provides that each full-time employee entitled to sick leave earns 0.03077
hours of sick leave for each hour worked up to 40 hours per week. The maximum annual earning is
limited to 64 hours per employee. The maximum amount of sick leave which can be carried forward
from one calendar year to the next is 400 hours. Sick leave amounts vest for employees in the
following manner:

Years of Service Vested %
Date of hire to end of 9™ year 0%
Start of 10™" year to end of 19" year 50%
Start of 20™" year and beyond 100%

An employee must separate in good standing in order to receive payment for accrued sick leave.
Payment of accrued sick leave is limited to 400 hours total. Expenditures for amounts vested with
employees are based on the availability of funds. Since funding of the Agency is based on annual
federal and state grant contracts, the availability of funds cannot be determined. Therefore, no
liability for accrued sick leave is recorded on the books of the Agency. As of September 30, 2024
and 2023, sick leave vested with employees was $198,438 and $240,397, respectively.

Note 12: DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue is the difference between grant and local revenue received less the actual
amount earned. Deferred revenue balances were as follows:

September 30, 2024 2023
Area Agency on Aging d/b/a Elder Options:
Community Care for the Elderly S 34,049 32,208
Alzheimer's Disease Initiative 9,215 7,251
Local Service Providers (LSP) 379 720
Title llIB - 78
Title IIC-1 - 2,153
Title 111 C-2 - 5,763
Title 1IIE - 2,471
Other local sources - 14,383
Total $ 43,643 65,027

Note 13: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Cash

The provisions of FASB ASC 825-10-50-21, Financial Instruments, identify deposits in excess of
federally insured limits as a concentration of credit risk requiring disclosure, regardless of the
degree of risk. At times, the Agency has on deposit funds in excess of the FDIC maximum coverage
of $250,000.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 13: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK (Continued)
Funding

Approximately 77% and 82% of the entity’s grant revenues were provided by the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services for fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Note 14: CONTINGENCIES

The Agency relies on funding from federal, state and local government sources. Discontinuation of,
or a significant reduction in the level of this funding, would directly impact the Agency’s activities
and programs.

The Agency directly guaranteed one bank loan for Kennedy Complex Cooperative (“KCC”), a Florida
non-profit. The outstanding principal on the loans was $1,723,835 and $1,848,212 at September 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively. Interest on the loans is based upon the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2%.
KCC used the proceeds of the loans to purchase real estate that the Agency leases from KCC. The
loan is collateralized by real estate.

Non-performance by KCC on the loan agreements would trigger the Agency’s obligation under the
guarantee. The Agency has recorded a ROU asset and corresponding operating lease liabilities for
this lease agreement. The Agency has not recorded any liability for this debt obligation and is of the
opinion that it will not be required to satisfy this guarantee. A loss resulting from the loan
guarantee, if any, would be recorded in the period that it becomes determinable.

At times, the Agency is involved in litigation and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of legal counsel, the range of potential recoveries or liabilities in excess of insurance
coverage, if any, is not reasonably determinable and no loss contingencies have been recorded.

Note 15: IN-KIND REVENUES

All donated space, services, and goods were utilized by the Agency’s program and supporting
services. There were no donor-imposed restrictions associated with the contributed space, services,
or goods.

The components of donated space, services and goods contributed to the Agency consists of the
following for the year ended September 30, 2024:

Head Senior

Start Services 2024 2023
Program supplies S 3,756 S - S 3,756 $ 1,335
Professional services 136,415 779,667 916,082 809,080
Facilities 3,026,761 459,254 3,486,015 2,997,864
In-kind contributions reflected

in statement of activities 3,166,932 1,238,921 4,405,853 3,808,279

Nonprofessional services 316,909 321,866 638,775 420,481
Total in-kind contributions $ 3,483,841 $ 1,560,787 $ 5,044,628 S 4,228,760
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Note 15: IN-KIND REVENUES (Continued)

The program supplies category includes donations of classroom material and supplies for the
Childhood Services division. Donated supplies are valued at the wholesale prices that would be
received for selling similar products.

The professional services category includes the services of attorneys, speech therapists, dentists,
and doctors. Donated services are valued using the most recent Bureau of Labor Statistics’ average
hourly wage for counselors in the Organization’s metropolitan area.

Facilities is comprised of land and building space and is utilized to operate the programs
administered by the Agency. The revenue is calculated based on estimated fair market rental values
of space used.

The Agency also receives support from volunteers and other local agencies and individuals whose
contributions do not meet the criteria for recognition as stated in Note 2. Therefore, the value of
these contributions is not included in the financial statements.

Note 16: RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency has a tax sheltered annuity arrangement under Code Section 403(B) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Contributions are made based on the availability of funds at the discretion of the
Agency. Contributions for the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 were $910,556 and
$829,004, respectively. All contributions are 100% vested with employees; no contributions are to
revert back to the Agency.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

And State Financial Assistance

For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Head Start Cluster
93.600  COVID-19 Head Start* COVID-19 04CH010229-05-C3  §$ -5 14,385
93.600  Head Start* 04CH011649-04 - 1,885,362
93.600  Head Start* 04CH011649-05 - 3,828,897
93.600  Head Start* 04CH011842-03 - 4,200,945
93.600 Head Start* 04CH011842-04 - 8,202,047
Subtotal for 93.600 - 18,131,636
93356  Head Start Disaster Recovery* 04ND000087-01 - 66,986
Total direct programs/Total for Head Start Cluster - 18,198,622
Aging Cluster
Department of Elder Affairs
Mid-Florida Area Agency on Special Programs for the Aging, Title I!l, Part B, Grants
Aging D/B/A Elder Options 93.044  for Support Services and Senior Centers** OAA-24-MFCS - 434,387

Special Programs for the Aging, Title ll, Part B, Grants
93.044  for Support Services and Senior Centers** 0AA-23-MFCS - 132,316

COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title I,
Part B, Grants for Support Services and Senior
93.044  Centers** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 239,419

Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll, Part B, Grants
93.044  for Support Services and Senior Centers** 0AA-24-MFCS - 128,216

Special Programs for the Aging, Title lIl, Part B, Grants
93.044  for Support Services and Senior Centers** OAA-23-MFCS : 56,174

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
- 24 .



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title lIl,
Part B, Grants for Support Services and Senior
93.044 Centers** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 8,484
Special Programs for the Aging, Title I, Part B, Grants
93.044 for Support Services and Senior Centers** 0OAA-24-MFCS - 267,364
Special Programs for the Aging, Title I, Part B, Grants
93.044 for Support Services and Senior Centers** OAA-23-MFCS - 71,329
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill,
Part B, Grants for Support Services and Senior
93.044 Centers** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 11,505
Department of Eider Affairs Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part B, Grants
Senior Connections Center, Inc. 93.044 for Support Services and Senior Centers** OAA-24-MFCS - 779,599
Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll, Part B, Grants
93.044 for Support Services and Senior Centers** 0OAA-23-MFCS - 166,852
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill,
93.044 Part B, Grants for Support Services and Senior COVID-19 ARP-21/24-MFCS - 103,507
Subtotal for 93.044 - 2,449,152
Department of Elder Affairs
Mid-Florida Area Agency on Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
Aging D/B/A Elder Options 93.045 Nutrition Services** OAA-24-MFCS - 92,088
Special Programs for the Aging, Title {ll, Part C,
93.045 Nutrition Services** OAA-24-MFCS - 145,059
Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll, Part C,
93.045 Nutrition Services** OAA-23-MFCS - 26,122
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
93.045 Nutrition Services** 0OAA-23-MFCS - 91,248

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures

Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,

93.045 Nutrition Services** OAA-24-MFCS - 13,242
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,

93.045 Nutrition Services** 0AA-24-MFCS - 24,835
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,

93.045 Nutrition Services** 0AA-23-MFCS - 11,879
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,

93.045 Nutrition Services** OAA-23-MFCS - 38,408
Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll, Part C,

93.045  Nutrition Services** OAA-24-MFCS - 239,919
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title I,

93.045 Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 57,639
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title lil,

93.045 Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 78,323
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title I,

93.045 Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 134,308
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll,

93.045 Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 65,665
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title 111,

93.045  Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 1,205

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

226 -



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill,
93,045  Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 117,319
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Il, Part C,
93.045  Nutrition Services** 0AA-24-MFCS - 38,234
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
93.045  Nutrition Services** 0OAA-23-MFCS - 65,848
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
93.045  Nutrition Services** OAA-23-MFCS - 52,540
Department of Elder Affairs Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
Senior Connections Center, Inc. 93.045  Nutrition Services** 0AA-2024-MFCS - 397,750
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll,
93.045  Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-21/24-MFCS - 434,584
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
93.045  Nutrition Services** OAA-2023-MFCS - 145,370
COVID-19 Special Programs for the Aging, Title lll,
93.045 Part C, Nutrition Services** COVID-19 ARP-21/24-MFCS - 153,145
Special Programs for the Aging, Title I, Part C,
93.045  Nutrition Services** OAA-2023-MFCS - 168,511
Special Programs for the Aging, Title Ill, Part C,
93.045  Nutrition Services** 0AA-2024-MFCS - 389,354
Subtotal for 93.045 - 2,982,595

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures

Department of Elder Affairs
Mid-Florida Area Agency on

Aging D/B/A Elder Options 93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** OAA-24-MFCS - 18,672
93.053 Nutrition Services incentive Program** OAA-24-MFCS - 2,868
93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** OAA-24-MFCS - 24,289
93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** OAA-23-MFCS - 19,968
93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** OAA-23-MFCS - 11,256
93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** 0OAA-23-MFCS - 19,665

Department of Elder Affairs
Senior Connections Center, inc. 93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** NSIP-24-MFCS - 101,218
93.053 Nutrition Services Incentive Program** NSIP-23-MFCS - (60,538)
Subtotal for 93,053 B - 137,398
Subtotal Aging Cluster - 5,569,145

Department of Elder Affairs
Mid-Florida Area Agency on

Aging D/B/A Elder Options 93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title ill, Part E OAA-24-MFCS - 57,433
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title Ill, Part E OAA-24-MFCS - 52,248
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title I!l, Part E OAA-24-MFCS - 93,047

COVID-19 National Family Caregiver Support, Title Ill,
93.052 Part E COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS . 141,584
COVID-19 National Family Caregiver Support, Title lll,
93.052 Part E COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 1,975
COVID-19 National Family Caregiver Support, Title Ill,
93.052 PartE COVID-19 ARP-22-MFCS - 14,652
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title Ill, Part E OAA-23-MFCS - 38,685
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title HI, Part E OAA-23-MFCS - 14,497
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title Ill, Part E OAA-23-MFCS - 36,054

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
.28 -



Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Ildentification No. Subrecipient Expenditures
Department of Elder Affairs
Senior Connections Center, inc. 93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title lll, Part E OAA-24-MFCS - 208,726
COVID-19 National Family Caregiver Support, Title 1ll,
93.052  PartE COVID-19 ARP-21/24-MFCS - 296,148
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title IH, Part E OAA-23-MFCS - 113,615
Subtotal for 93.052 - 1,068,664
Department of Elder Affairs
Mid-Florida Area Agency on
Aging D/B/A Elder Options 93.568 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program EA-21-MFCS - 26,640

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity
93.568 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program E2011 - 3,676,907

Subtotal for 93.568 - 3,703,547

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity
93.569 Community Services Block Grant E2011 - 771,161

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity
COVID-19 Low Income Home Water Assistance
93.499 Program COVID-19 CAAE2011 - 105,895

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - 29,417,034

U.S. Department of Energy
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity
81.042 Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons E2011 - 2,904,131

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures

Federal Transit Administration
Florida Department of Transportation
COVID-19 Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Tranit

20.509 Program COVID-19 G1M32 - 391,284
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Florida Department of Health 10.558 Chitd and Adult Care Food Program S-803 - 690,424
U.S. Department of Justice
Florida Office of Attorney Voca-2023-Mid Florida Community
General 16.575 Crime Victim Assistance Services, 00024 - 458,625
Florida Office of Attorney
General 16.758 National Childrens Alliance BROO-FL-Core24 - 35,395
Total U.S. Department of Justice - 494,020
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S - S 33,896,893
Department of Elder Affairs
Mid-Florida Area Agency on Aging
D/B/A Elder Options 65.001 Home Care for the Elderly HCE-23-MFCS s - 8 32,122
65.001 Home Care for the Elderly HCE-24-YTF - 6,747
65.001 Home Care for the Elderly HCE-23-MFCS - 6,265
65.001 Home Care for the Elderly HCE-24-YTF - 2,730
65.001 Home Care for the Elderly HCE-23-MFCS - 22,941
65.001 Home Care for the Elderly HCE-24-YTF - 3,190
Subtotal for 65.001 . 73,995

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance {Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures
65.004 Alzheimer's Respite Services ADI-24-YTF - 109,768
65.004 Alzheimer's Respite Services ADI-23-MFCS - 250,112
65.004  Alzheimer's Respite Services ADI-24-YTH - 26,714
65.004  Alzheimer's Respite Services ADI-23-MFCS - 30,037
65.004 Alzheimer's Respite Services ADI-24-YTF - 131,082
65.004  Alzheimer's Respite Services ADI-23-MFCS - 333,567
Subtotal for 65.004 - 881,280
65.009 Lacal Services Programs LSP-23-MFCS - 12,600
65.008 Local Services Programs LSP-24-YTF - 6,987
Subtotal for 65.009 - 19,587
65.010  Community Care for the Elderly CCE-23-MFCS - 925,886
65.010  Community Care for the Elderly CCE-24-YTF - 279,807
65.010  Community Care for the Elderly CCE-23-MFCS - 80,109
65.010  Community Care for the Elderly CCE-24-YTF - 27,843
65.010  Community Care for the Elderly CCE-23-MFCS - 585,171
65.010  Community Care for the Elderly CCE-24-YTF - 170,399
Subtotal for 65.010 - 2,069,215
Total Department of Elder Affairs - 3,044,077

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.

d/b/a You Thrive Florida

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Federal or State Agency/ ALN/ CSFA Total
Pass-Through Entity No. Name of Program Award Identification No. Subrecipient Expenditures
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged
Florida Commission for the Transportation
55.001 Disadvantaged (CTD) Trip Equipment Grant Program G2715 - 90,175
Florida Commission for the Transportation
55.001 Disadvantaged (CTD) Trip Equipment Grant Program G2K47 - 198,095
Subtotal for 55.001 - 288,270
Florida Commission for the Transportation
Disadvantaged (CTD) Innovation and Service
55.045 Development Grant G2L82 - 60,262
Total Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged - 348,532
Early Learning Coalition
75.007 Voluntary Prekindergarten Education N/A - 260,959
Office of the Florida Attorney General
GR-2023-Mid Florida
Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. - Children's Community Services, Inc -
41.043 Advocacy Center of Hernando County 00023 - 348,354
Office of the State Court Administrator
Florida Network of Child
Advocacy 22.016 FL Network of Children Advocacy Centers 24/25-GR-CAC13 - 24,849
22.016 FL Network of Children Advocacy Centers 23/24-GR-CAC13 - 61,698
Subtotal for 22.016 - 86,547
Total State Financial Assistance S - S 4,088,469

* Head Start Cluster
**Aging Cluster

See the independent auditor’s report and accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financiol assistance.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance

Note 1: BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

This Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance (the Schedule) was
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The modified accrual basis differs from the
full accrual basis of accounting in that expenditures for property and equipment are expensed when
incurred, rather than being capitalized and depreciated over their useful lives, and expenditures for
the principal portion of debt service are expensed when incurred rather than being applied to
reduce the outstanding principal portion of debt which conforms to the basis of reporting to
grantors for reimbursement under the terms of the Agency’s federal and state grants.

Note 2: INDIRECT COST

The Agency has not elected to use the 10% de Minimis indirect cost rate for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024.

Note 3: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule were obtained from the Agency’s general
ledger. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations, it is not intended
to and does not present the financial positions and changes in net assets of the Agency.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards and state financial assistance include all grants,
contracts, and similar agreements entered into directly with the federal or state government and
other pass-through entities. Payments received for goods or services provided as a vendor do not
constitute federal or state awards for purposes of the Schedule. The Agency has obtained
Assistance Listing Numbers (ALN) and Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) numbers to
ensure that all programs have been identified in the Schedule. ALN and CSFA numbers have been
appropriately listed by applicable programs. Federal programs with different ALNs that are closely
related because they share common compliance requirements are defined as a cluster by the
Uniform Guidance.

Aging Cluster

This cluster includes awards that assist agencies on aging in facilitating the development and
implementation of a comprehensive, coordinated system for providing long-term care in home
and community based settings, in a manner responsive to the needs and preferences of older
individuals and their family caregivers.

Head Start Cluster

This cluster provides awards to promote school readiness of low-income children (including

American Indians, Alaska Natives, and migrant and seasonal farm workers) by enhancing
children’s cognitive, social and emotional development.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance

Note 4: RELATIONSHIP OF THE SCHEDULE TO PROGRAM FINANCIAL REPORTS

The amounts reflected in the financial reports submitted to the awarding federal, state and/or
pass-through agencies and the Schedule may differ. Some of the factors that may account for
any difference include the following:

e The Agency’s fiscal year end may differ from the program’s year end.

e Accruals recognized in the Schedule, because of year end procedures, may not be reported
in the program financial reports until the next program reporting period.

e Fixed asset purchases and the resultant depreciation charges may be recognized as fixed
assets in the Agency’s financial statements and as expenditures in the program financial
reports and the Schedule.

Note 5: FEDERAL AND STATE PASS-THROUGH FUNDS

The Agency is also the sub-recipient of federal and state funds that have been subjected to testing
and are reported as expenditures and listed as federal or state pass-through funds. Federal awards
and state financial assistance other than those indicated as “pass-through” are considered direct.
Note 6: CONTINGENCIES

Grant monies received and disbursed are for specific purposes and are subject to review by the
grantor agencies. Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement due to disallowed
expenditures. The Agency does not believe that such disallowance, if any, would have a material
effect on its financial position. As of September 30, 2024, there were no material questioned or
disallowed costs as a result of grant audits in process or completed.

Note 7: NONCASH ASSISTANCE

The Agency did not receive any federal or state noncash assistance for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024.

Note 8: SUBRECIPIENTS

The Agency did not provide federal or state funds to subrecipients for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024.

Note 9: LOANS AND LOAN GUARANTEES

The Agency did not have any loans or loan guarantee programs required to be reported on the
Schedule for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024.

Note 10: FEDERALLY FUNDED INSURANCE

The Agency did not have any federally funded insurance required to be reported on the Schedule
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2024.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Brooksville, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Mid
Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida (a nonprofit organization), (the Agency),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2024, and the related
statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 14, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s
internal control over financial reporting {internal control} as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

&M,%'??y ,’! L&W, L.L.c.

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

Enterprise, Alabama
February 14, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND

CHAPTER 10.650, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Board of Directors
Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Brooksville, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Major State Project
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and Major State Project

We have audited Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.’s d/b/a You Thrive Florida (the Agency)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB
Compliance Supplement and the requirements described in the Department of Financial Services
State Projects Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Agency’s major federal programs and major state project for the year ended September 30, 2024.
The Agency’s major federal programs and major state project are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs and major state project for the year ended September 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program and Major State Project

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida (Chapter 10.650). Our
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650 are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and major state project. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the Agency’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Agency’s federal programs and state projects.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express
an opinion on the Agency’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, the
Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650 will always detect material noncompliance when it exists.
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Agency’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program and major state project as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and Chapter 10.650 we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Agency’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Agency’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and Chapter 10.650, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program or state project on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
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internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state project will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program or state project that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in
internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and Chapter 10.650. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.

&M,“ﬂﬁy fl L&W, L.L.c

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, L.L.C.

Enterprise, Alabama
February 14, 2025
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
1. Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified
2. Internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weaknesses identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? None noted
¢. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards
1. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified
2. Internal control over major programs:
a. Material weaknesses identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? None noted
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2CFR section 200.516(a)? None noted

4, \dentification of major programs

Assistance Listing

Number Federal Program
93.356 & 93.600 Head Start Cluster
93.052 National Family Caregiver Support, Title lll, Part E

5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs $1,016,907

6. Auditee qualified as low-risk under 2CFR 200.520 Yes
State Projects
1. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified
2. Internal control over major programs:
a. Material weaknesses identified? No
b. Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? None noted
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Florida Single Audit Act? No
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

4. l|dentification of major programs

CFSA Number State Program
65.004 Alzheimer’s Respite Services
65.010 Community Care for the Elderly

5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs $750,000

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

No such findings noted.

Section |1l - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No such findings or questioned costs in the current year.

Section IV — Major State Projects Findings and Questioned Costs

No such findings or questioned costs in the current year.

Section V — Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

There were no prior year federal or state findings to report.

Section VI — Management Letter Required by Florida Statutes 215.97(10)(f) and 215.97(11)(d)

There were no items related to State financial assistance required to be reported and no
management letter is presented.
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Fiorida
Schedule of Functional Expenses — Required by
Mid Florida Area Agency on Aging, d/b/a Elder Options
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Descriptions Homemaker Transportation Screening
Salaries S 27,666 S 2,126 4,254
Payroll taxes and benefits 8,585 717 1,042
Travel - - -
Building costs - - -
Telephone and utilities - - -
Supplies - - 31
Food costs - - -
Sub-contractors 1,479,701 98,021 -
Depreciation - - -
Other - - -
Total expenses 1,515,952 100,864 5,327
Allocation of management and general 21,069 1,619 3,240
Total expenses after allocation S 1,537,021 S 102,483 8,567
TOTAL UNITS 56,114 9,134 345

See independent auditor’s report.



Congregate Telephone
Screening Reassurance Chore Recreation Outreach

2,534 S 13,835 S - 9,981 74,603

323 4,674 - 3,549 7,871

- - - - 8,055

1,026 3,034 - - -

- 59 - 365 5,278

- - 4,125 - -

3,883 21,602 4,125 13,895 95,807

1,930 10,536 - 7,601 56,814

5813 $ 32,138 4,125 21,496 152,621

157 3,801 1 2,354 4,815
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Functional Expenses — Required by
Mid Florida Area Agency on Aging, d/b/a Elder Options (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Home
Nutrition Delivered Congregate
Descriptions Education Meals Meals
Salaries S 13,612 § 166,720 S 71,247
Payroll taxes and benefits 2,790 60,437 19,878
Travel - 7,563 5,678
Building costs - - 2,511
Telephone and utilities - 11,309 10,714
Supplies - 650 3,220
Food costs - 630,574 379,210
Sub-contractors - - -
Depreciation - - -
Other 3,580 31,182 1,425
Total expenses 19,982 908,435 493,883
Allocation of management and general 10,366 126,966 54,258
Total expenses after allocation S 30,348 S 1,035,401 S 548,141
TOTAL UNITS 3,434 85,450 71,367

See independent auditor’s report.



Emergency Adult Day

Personal Alert Case Health

Respite Care Response Management Care
14,578 12,547 5,68 S 153,671 2,677
4,121 3,751 2,149 38,298 1,036
- - - 5,022 -
- - - 3,449 -
- - - 6,536 -
- - - 3,157 -
1,490,183 611,185 9,879 - 144,940
- - - 38,689 -
1,508,882 627,483 17,714 248,822 148,653
11,102 9,555 4,330 117,028 2,039
1,519,984 637,038 22,044 S 365,850 150,692
34,907 23,329 12,037 2,076 1,697
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Functional Expenses — Required by

Mid Florida Area Agency on Aging, d/b/a Elder Options (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Pest Control Pest Control
Descriptions Supplemental Maintenance Initial

Salaries S - S - S -
Payroll taxes and benefits - - -
Travel - - -
Building costs - - -
Telephone and utilities - - -
Supplies - - -
Food costs - - -
Sub-contractors 249,069 85 200
Depreciation - - -
Other - - -

Total expenses 249,069 85 200

Allocation of management and general - - -

Total expenses after allocation S 249,069 S 85 S 200

TOTAL UNITS 389 1 1

See independent auditor’s report.



Services For Total Management
Non-DOEA Program and
Programs Cost General Total
S (5,315) S 570,422 § 166,364 S 736,786
9 159,230 52,533 211,763
1,270 27,588 3,817 31,405
409 6,369 24,640 31,009
1,551 34,170 22,470 56,640
1,488 14,248 6,410 20,658
368 1,010,152 - 1,010,152
15,808 4,103,196 - 4,103,196
3,882 3,882 - 3,882
19,971 94,847 158,171 253,018
39,441 6,024,104 434,405 6,458,509
(4,048) 434,405 (434,405) -
S 35,393 S 6,458,509 $ - $ 6,458,509
N/A N/A N/A 311,409
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Functional Expenses — Required by

Senior Connections Center, Inc.

For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Descriptions Homemaker Transportation Screening
Salaries S 3,457 S 10,372 S 3,241
Payroll taxes and benefits 685 2,056 571
Travel - - -
Building costs - - 366
Telephone and utilities - - 2,240
Supplies - - 636
Food costs - - -
Sub-contractors 548,890 41,697 -
Other - - -
Total expenses 553,032 54,125 7,054
Allocation of management and general 1,890 5,671 1,772
Total expenses after allocation S 554,922 S 59,796 S 8,826
TOTAL UNITS 22,374 6,368 1,101

See independent auditor’s report.



Home

Telephone Nutrition Delivered
Reassurance Outreach Education Meals
4,322 § 28,459 § 10,091 S 83,813
1,028 6,563 2,327 21,416
- 252 126 4,505
365 - 416 2,019
1,942 3,928 3,367 1,464
679 2,327 412 761
- - - 502,032
- - 443 3,793
8,336 41,529 17,182 619,803
2,363 15,559 5,517 45,822
10,699 S 57,088 S 22,699 S 665,625
1,089 455 3,663 144,004

(Continued)
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Mid Florida Community Services, Inc. d/b/a You Thrive Florida
Schedule of Functional Expenses — Required by
Senior Connections Center, Inc. (Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Adult Day

Congregate Health Facility

Descriptions Meals Respite Care Respite
Salaries S 185,051 $ 4,454 S 216 S -
Payroll taxes and benefits 40,588 2,986 17 -
Travel 5,884 - - -
Building costs 3,757 29 - -
Telephone and utilities 3,109 2,693 - -
Supplies 17,578 2,755 - -
Food costs 671,792 - - -
Sub-contractors - 667,438 168,507 16,331
Other 1,676 3,444 - -
Total expenses 929,435 683,799 168,740 16,331
Allocation of management and general 101,171 2,435 118 -
Total expenses after allocation S 1,030,606 $ 686,234 § 168,858 § 16,331
TOTAL UNITS 51,917 21,174 2,239 1,742

See independent auditor’s report.



Services For

Other Total Management
Material Non-DOEA Program and
Aide Supplemental Programs Cost General Total
S - $ - S 4581 $ 338057 $ 74924 $ 412,981
- - - 78,237 20,526 98,763
- - 61 10,828 2,103 12,931
- - - 6,952 - 6,952
- - - 18,743 - 18,743
- - 1,048 26,196 - 26,196
- - 5,336 1,179,160 - 1,179,160
170 19,817 30,000 1,492,850 - 1,492,850
- - 8,956 18,312 87,270 105,582
170 19,817 49,982 3,169,335 184,823 3,354,158
- - 2,505 184,823 (184,823) -
S 170 S 19,817 $ 52,487 S 3,354,158 $ - $ 3,354,158
1 112 N/A N/A N/A 256,239
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2025 Governing Board
Official Roster

Grantee: You Thrive Florida

LOW-INCOME SECTOR

Name Mailing Address Phone Numbers | Dateoriginally = Dateseatedfor  Total# of years
Current Office Held seatedonboard =~ currentterm*  served on Board
' County = T s o Cull e
Farrell, Jessica 820 Kennedy Blvd.
BOARD MEMBER Brooksville, FL 34601 | (352)796-5222 04/10/24 04/10/24 1year
| Hernando County Jessfrancis12l(@gmail.com w LA i B .
Jackson, Evone ** 820 Kennedy Blvd. ‘
BOARD MEMBER Brooksville, FL 34601 (352)796-5222 07/13/11 04/14/22 14 years
Sumter County | evonejac@yahoo.com Mobile: (352) 274-7646 '
Mass, Donna ** | 820 Kennedy Blvd. | ~ o= f |
BOARD MEMBER Brooksville, FL 34601 | (352)796-5222 10/14/15 04/14/22 10 years
| Volusia County _ 2 - S8 4 __ Wi | |
| Mobley, Brenda 820 Kennedy Blvd. [ b ]
SECRETARY/TREASURER ‘ Brooksville, FL 34601 | (352)796-5222 04/08/20 04/14/22 ' 5years
Board Member, NAACP | Mobile: (352) 345-1925 l
Hernando County _ ! |
Sampson, Jasmine 1000 15w Street E ~ | Approved/1%
BOARD MEMBER Holly Hill, FL 32117 (352)796-5222 | Meeting: 04/04/25 >1year
Volusia County | Sampsonjasmine98@gmail.com \;Mobile: (386) 302-9750 | 04/02/25

** Grandfathered Board Members with no term limits.
Term limit ruling of a 5-year term, which will automatically renew for two more 5-year consecutive terms. (See By Laws Article Ill: § 3.6)

Revised on May 14, 2025



2025 Governing Board

Official Roster
Grantee: You Thrive Florida
PUBLIC SECTOR
Name Mailing Address Phone Numbers ‘ Date originally  Date seated  Total # of years
Current Office Held Email Address , seated on for current served on
Public Sector Position | | board term * Board
County | ol
Alford, Michelle 820 Kennedy Blvd. i Approved/1%
BOARD MEMBER, Appointed Representative ~ Brooksville, FL 34601 ‘ {352)796-5222 Meeting: 04/02/25 <1lyear
Citrus Director of Housing Services | 04/02/25
| Citrus County | |
Champion, Steve ** 15678 Oakcrest Circle | ‘ :
BOARD MEMBER, Appointed Represenative | Brooksville, FL 34604 (352)796-5222 |
Hernando County Commissioner stevedchampion(@gmail.com Mobile: (954) 663-8667 | 04/12/17 ‘ 04/14/22 8 years
| Hernando County - | : e | N .
Lakin, Phil | 820 Kennedy Blvd. Approved: | ‘
BOARD MEMBER, Appointed Representative | Brooksville, FL 34601 (352)796-5222 ‘ 10/13/21 | 01/12/22 3years
Maijor; Patrol Division Commander I
Hernando County 1% Meeting:
- ‘ 5 1/12/22
Saez, Angelys 820 Kennedy Blvd. | Approved:
BOARD MEMBER, Appointed Representative | Brooksville, FL 34601 (352)796-5222 8/21/24
Service Center Manager ‘ 10/11/24 <1lyear
Potk County 1** Meeting
' 10/11/24

| VACANCY - MORRIS § ‘ ' |

| NS [ R
** Grandfathered Board Members with no term limits.
Term limit ruling of a 5-year term, which will automatically renew for two more 5-year consecutive terms. (See By Laws Article I11: § 3.6)

Revised on May 14, 2025



2025 Governing Board
Official Roster

Grantee: You Thrive Florida

PRIVATE SECTOR
Name Mailing Address Phone Numbers Date originally = Date seated for = Total # of years
Current Office Held Email Address seated on currentterm * served on
Private Sector Position board Board

- County . T - -
Childers, Doug ** 820 Kennedy Blvd.

‘ BOARD MEMBER Brooksville, FL 34601 (352)796-5222 07/07/94 | 04/14/22 31years
Accretive Insurance Group doug3361@outlook.com Mobile: (352) 643-0188 '

‘ Sumter County -
Lyon, Aaron ** | 13586 Banyan Road
BOARD MEMBER Spring Hill, FL 34609 | (352)796-5222 10/14/15 04/14/22 10 years
Addessi Financial Aaron@addessifinancial.com Mobile: (727) 534-8992
Hernando County
Norman-Vacha, Jennene ** 820 Kennedy Blvd. '
BOARD CHAIR Brooksville, FL 34601 (352)796-5222 07/14/10 04/14/22 15 years

Professional Human Resource Partners
Hernando County

|
Morris, James 11430 Camp Mine Road ‘ Approved:
VICE-CHAIR | Brooksville, FL 34601 (352)796-5222 ' 10/12/22
Regional Environmental Manager Jamesp.morris(@cemex.com l Mobile: (352) 303-3563 01/11/23 2vyears
Sumter, Hernando, Citrus & Lake ‘ 1% meeting;
Sumter, Hernando, Citrus, & Lake 1/11/23
Ramirez, Tracy ** | 820 Kennedy Blvd.
BOARD MEMBER Brooksville, FL 34601 (852)796-5222 04/10/13 04/14/22 12 years
Toner & Ramirez Law Firm tracy@tonerramirez.com Mobile: (813) 810-1145
Hernando County

** Grandfathered Board Members with no term limits.
Term limit ruling of a 5-year term, which will automatically renew for two more 5-year cansecutive terms. (See By Laws Article IlI: § 3.6)

Revised on May 14, 2025
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Steve Homan has eight years administering grants and over fifteen years in regulatory
compliance. Kris Bates has over twenty years in grant administration and almost forty years in
regulatory compliance. Key fiduciary responsibilities are as follows:

Duty of Care:

We ensure the proper use and management of all nonprofit assets, including facilities,
personnel, and goodwill.

Duty of Loyalty

We document and justify all financial transactions.
Duty of Obedience

We comply with the organization's bylaws, as well as all applicable federal, state, and
local laws and regulations. We make sure the organization files necessary reports, such as
the annual Form 990.

\ (352) 7961425 @ 820 Kennedy Bivd. Brooksville, FL 34601 (&) www.youthrivefl.org




% 4,
N Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives

Section VIII
E

\, (352) 796-1425 € 820 Kennedy Blvd. Brooksville, FL 34601 &) www.youthrivefi.org




\\ Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives

|

Listed below are the key components of administrative capacity to carry out our activity
successfully:

¢ Financial Management:

We ensure strong financial practices, including budgeting, fundraising, and accounting, to
maintain solvency and support operations.

o Technology and Systems:

We have implemented the technology and other systems needed for operations, from
basic office functions to more specific program or data management tools.

¢ Human Resources:

We have built a committed and skilled workforce, both paid staff and volunteers, to
support operational activities and compliance accountability.

e Operational Efficiency:

We have streamlined internal processes to ensure administrative tasks are handled
efficiently and effectively.
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N Creating Opportunities, Enriching Lives

GERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE RESOLUTION

I, Jennene Norman-Vacha, as Board Chair of Mid Florida Community Services, Inc.
DBA You Thrive Florida, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit Florida corporation (EIN: 59-1235202),
hereby certify that the following is a full, true and accurate copy of the resolution of the
Board of Directors, duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board,
duly called and held in all aspects as required by federal, state, and local regulations
and the corporate bylaws governing the organization, at which meeting a quorum of the
Board was present.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Board of Directors authorizes Mat Kline — Chief Executive Officer, Lisa
Becker — Chief Administrative Officer, Steve Homan — Chief Operating Officer,
and Kris Bates — Chief Financial Officer, to execute all checks, federal/state/local
contracts/subcontracts, grant applications/agreements, amendments, warranties,
certifications and any other documents which may be required in connection with
programs/services in which the agency administers.

2. This resolution will remain in full effect until further modified or revoked by the
BOARD in the same manner as previously described.

Duly passed and adopted this 10\”‘ day of \Sh 0,«1 , 2024,
( ‘ QJLM{ l“.g r'w«..%g?_ f&a)
-Jy ne Normap-Vacha, Board @hair
ATTEST:

Print §ame Signaturj

. (888) 802 7482




